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NATURE OF THE ACTION

This matter comes before the Court on Movants' motion for leave to file a

complaint for declaratory and injunctive relief, pursuant to Article IV, Section 3 of the

Illinois Constitution of 1970, to declare unconstitutional Public Act 97-0006, which is the

redistricting plan for election of members to the Illinois General Assembly signed into

law by Governor Patrick Quinn on June 3,2011 (hereinafter "Redistricting Plan"). The

Movants' Motion For Leave and proposed complaint were filed on February 8,201'2.

The Respondents' objections were filed on February 2I,2012. On March 14,2012, this

Court directed the parties to file briefs on the issue of whether the motion for leave to file

an original action is timely.

ISSUE PRESENTED

Whether Movants' motion for leave to file a complaint for declaratory and

injunctive relief is timely where the pleadings request relief applicable to the 2Ol4

primary elections and subsequent elections.

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS INVQLYED

Illinois Constitution, Art. IV, Section 3 (1910), as amended:

(a) Legislative Districts shall be compact, contiguous and substantially equal in
population. Representative Districts shall be compact, contiguous, and

substantially equal in population.

(b) In the year following each Federal decennial census year, the General Assembly
by law shall redistrict the Legislative Districts and the Representative Districts.

*t<{<

The Supreme Court shall have original and exclusive jurisdiction over actions

concerning redistricting the House and Senate, which shall be initiated in the

name of the People of the State by the Attomey General.
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

On February 8, 2012, Minority Leader of the Illinois House of Representatives

Tom Cross, Minority Leader of the Illinois Senate Christine Radogno, registered voter

James Orlando and registered voter Christine Dolgopol (hereinafter "Movants") filed a

Motion For Leave To File An Original Action under Supreme Court Rule 382

(hereinafter "Motion") and a proposed complaint challenging the constitutionality of

Public Act 97-0006, which is the redistricting plan passed by the General Assembly and

signed into law by Governor Pat Quinn on June 3, 2011 (hereinafter "Redistricting

Plan"). (Motion, Prop. Complt.).

The proposed complaint alleges that the Redistricting Plan violates the

requirement in the Illinois Constitution that all legislative and representative districts be

"compact." (Prop. Complt, Count I, pages 1l-13). The Movants also allege that the

Redistricting Plan will dilute the influence of Republican voters throughout the state in

violation of the constitutional guarantee of "political fairness." (Prop. Complt., Count II,

pages 13-15). Movant Orlando specifically alleges that Representative District 35, where

he is a resident and registered voter, violates the constitutional guarantees of compactness

and political faimess. (Prop. Complt., Counts III, IV, pages 15-17). Movant Dolgopol

specifically alleges that Representative District 59 and Legislative District 30, where she

is a resident and registered voter, violate the constitutional guarantees of compactness

and political fairness. (Prop. Complt., Counts V-VIII, pages 17-22)'

The Movants requested several forms of relief. First, the Movants requested

that this Court enter an order declaring that the Redistricting Plan as a whole violates the

constitutional requirements that all representative and legislative districts be compact and
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politically fair. (Prop. Complt, Counts I-II). In the alternative, the Movants Orlando and

Dolgopol requested that the Court find that Representative Districts 35 and 59 as well as

Legislative District 30 violate the compactness and political fairness requirements. (Prop.

Complt., Counts III-VIID. The Movants also requested that this Court enjoin the

Respondent Illinois State Board of Elections from conducting any elections under the

Redistricting Plan or, in the altemative, under the current configurations of

Representative Districts 35, 59 and Legislative District 30. (Prop. Complt, Counts I-VIID.

The prayers for relief did not limit this request for injunctive relief to the March

20, 2012 pnmary. Id. As Movants noted in their Brief in support of the Motion, "if the

Court finds all or some of the Redistricting Plan unconstitutional, but deems it an

impossibility to enjoin the March 20,2012 primary, Movants suggest that a remedy could

be provided in time for implementation for the March 2014 pnmary." (Brief, page I2).

Movants also proposed that this Court adopt alternative configurations for the

Redistricting Plan as a whole as well as alternatives to Representative Districts 35 and 59

and Legislative District 30 designed by the Movants to be incorporated within the

Redistricting Plan. (Prop. Complt, Counts I-VIII). ln lieu of adopting these alternatives,

the Movants also requested that this Court appoint a special master to develop a

redistricting plan or draw specific districts that comply with the requirements of the

Illinois Constitution. Id

Movants Cross and Radogno were plaintiffs in litigation filed on July 20,2011,

which challenged the lawfulness of the Redistricting Plan under federal law, the U.S.

Constitution and state law. Radogno, et al v. Illinois State Board of Elections, et a/., No.

l lC4884 (N.D.II1. 2011). Movants Orlando and Dolgopol were not parties to the federal
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lawsuit. Counts 7 and 8 of the initial complaint filed by the federal plaintiffs alleged that

the Redistricting Plan as a whole violated the compactness requirement of the Illinois

Constitution and that the process by which the Democratic majorities of the General

Assembly passed this map violated the mandate established by this Court ín People v.

Ryan I, 147 Ill.2d 270 (1991). (Exhibit l, Fed. complt., counts 7, 8). Although

Representative Districts 35 and 59 were included in the list of districts that violated the

compactness requirement of the Illinois Constitution, the federal plaintiffs made no

specific allegations about these districts and sought no specific relief regarding these

districts. (Ex. 1, page27, T191). The federal plaintiffs never alleged that the Redistricting

Plan violated the political fairness requirements of the Illinois Constitution.

On October 21,2011, the three-judge panel dismissed with prejudice Count 3,

which was a First Amendment claim and Count 5, which was a challenge under the Equal

Protection clause to the constitutionality of the Illinois Voting Rights Act of 201 1 . (Ex. 1 ,

page 22, T1[159-162; pages 23-25, IT163-175). The Octobet 21, 20Il order also

dismissed with prejudice the aforementioned Counts 7 and 8. On November 77,20II,

the panel dismissed the federal plaintiffs' re-pled claims alleging that the Redistricting

Plan violates the Equal Protection clause of the U.S. Constitution. On December 7 ,2011,

the panel granted summary judgment in favor of the defendants on the remaining counts

regarding alleged infirmities of Representative Districts 23 and 96. The federal plaintiffs

filed a notice of appeal to the United States Supreme Court on January 12,2012 and filed

a jurisdictional statement on March 12,2012.

6



ARGUMENT

THE MOVAIITS' CLAIMS FOR INJUNCTIVE AND DECLARATORY
RELIEF ARE TIMELY AS APPLIED TO FUTURE ELECTIONS.

I. It is a central principle of election law that an election may
not go forward under an unlawful redistricting plan unless absolutely
necessary.

In its foundational redistricting case, Reynolds v. Sims, the United States Supreme

Court recognized that litigation challenging redistricting schemes will often conflict with

impending elections. 377 U.5.533, 585 (1964). ln Reynolds, the Court noted that a

lower court might be justified in allowing one election cycle to go forward under an

unconstitutional apportionment plan. Id. However, the Court emphasized that "it would

be an unusual case in which a court would be justified in not taking appropriate action to

insure that no further elections are conducted under an invalid plan." Id. (emphasis

added). The Court entrusted the lower courts to fashion appropriate equitable remedies

that take into account the realities of the existing election schedule while vindicating the

vital principle that constitutional violations must be remedied as soon as possible. 1d

Since the landmark decision ín Reynolds, courts reviewing redistricting challenges

filed close to an impending election have done just that, sometimes permitting pending

elections to be completed under a potentially unconstitutional redistricting plan, but

ensuring that no further elections are conducted under such a plan. In Martin v. Soucie,

for example, the plaintiffs raised a compactness challenge to the redistricting plan for

county board districts in Kankakee County, asking the court to enjoin the upcomingl9S2

election. Martin v. Soucie, 109 lll.App .3d 731,732-734 (3rd Dist. 1982). The trial court

heard the case on the merits and determined that multiple districts within the plan
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violated the compactness requirement. Id. at734-735. However, the trial court ultimately

barred all claims by reason of laches due to the prejudice caused by the plaintiffls

inexcusable delay. Id. at732-733.

The Appellate Court affirmed the trial court's rejection of the non-compact map,

but reversed its application of the affirmative defense of laches to future elections.ld at

736. The alleged prejudice to the defendants stemming from the plaintiffs' delay (such as

having to print new ballots and reprogram voting machines), the Appellate Court held,

"applies only to the relief requested for the 1982 election." Id. (emphasis added)' The

Appellate Court concluded that it "could not countenance any further elections pursuant

to that map." Id.

Other courts have followed this same equitable principle when faced with a

challenge to redistricting plan near the time of an impending election. In a case decided

just last month, the Supreme Court of Ohio barred a challenge to a redistricting plan as

applied to the imminent 2012 elections, but noted that laches does not bar claims

applicable to elections to be held over the remainder of the decade that could be affected

bytheallegedlyunconstitutionalplan. Wilsonv.Kasich,20I2WL59254l,at*1,*1-*3

(Ohio, February 17,2Ol2) (citing Reynolds and Martin). Subsequent to the opinion, the

Supreme Court of Ohio issued a briefing schedule and set oral arguments for ApnI24,

2012. (Exhibit 2, March 2, 2012 Order).

Likewise, in Kelley v. Bennett, a federal district court denied the defendants'

defense of laches,noting that after the initial election under the challenged redistricting

plan, "it did not matter when the plaintiffs sued, as long as it was in time for the fnext]

election." Kelley v. Bennett, g6 F.Supp.2d 130I,1305 (M.D. Ala. 2000). In Smith v.
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Beasley, another federal district court held that equity required the ongoing election to go

forward under the challenged redistricting plan but that the plaintiffs were "entitled to

have their rights vindicated as soon as possible so that they can vote for their

representatives under a constitutional apportionment plan." Smith v. Beasley,946 F.Supp'

1174,l2l2 (D.S.C. 1996). InDillardv. Crensltaw County,640 F. Supp. 1347 (M.D.

Ala. 1986), a case cited by the Respondents (Respondents' Objection at 11), the court

declined, on equitable grounds, to enjoin pending elections but held that the defendants'

unlawful election systems "must be eliminated as soon as possible" and entered a

preliminary injunction requiring the defendants to develop ne\ry election plans by January

1 of the following year. Id. at 1362.

il. The affirmative defense of hches does not bar Movants' request for
relief as applied to elections in 2014 and beyond because the element

of prejudice to the opposing party is lacking.

A finding of laches requires both unreasonable delay and prejudice to the

opposing party arising from the delay. Tully v. State, 143 lll.zd 425, 432(1991).t As the

Appellate Court noted ín Martin, election officials are not prejudiced by being put on

notice of the unlawfulness of a redistricting plan almost two years ahead of the election

sought to be enjoined. 103 Ill.App.3d at736. The Respondents do not and cannot deny

this basic reality. Instead, they resort to the unsubstantiated contention that fashioning a

remedy for the 2014 pnmaries would require "millions of dollars, months of work and

quite possibly another round of federal litigation conceming federal claims."

(Respondents' Objection at 14).

I Respondent's assertions ofprejudice to candidates, supporters, voters, and courts

(Respondents' Objection at 12-13) are irrelevant. As Tully makes clear, the only relevant

form of detriment is to the party asserting the affirmative defense of laches. I43 lll.2d at

432.
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This contention is both conjectural and beside the point. To justify the affirmative

defense of laches, the prejudice alleged by the respondents must be material, not

speculative. Martin,109 Ill.App.3d at 732-733. Even assuming the respondents'

contention were true, the alleged "prejudice" would not have been caused by the

Movants' delay, Tully, 143 Ill.2d at 432, but by the unconstitutionality of the

Redistricting Plan. The expense and effort of remedying an unconstitutional redistricting

plan would be required whether the Movants filed suit within days of the Governor's

signature, or in October 2011 after the dismissal of the federal plaintiffs' state-law

claims, or at any other time. The Movants' claims should not be barred merely because

the respondents do not savor the prospect of having to fix an unconstitutional redistricting

plan.

Furthermore, applying a remedy to the 2014 elections would be the most

expeditious way to provide the Movants with relief without causing substantial disruption

to the public, candidates and election authorities. Potential candidates and incumbent

legislators for the new districts would have sufficient time to determine whether to bear

the expense of mounting a campaign. Election authorities would not have to reprint

ballots, reconfigure voting machines or schedule special elections. Similarly, this Court

could carefully consider the allegations and constitutional principles at stake rather than

rushing to make a decision in order to avoid disturbing candidate deadlines. Movants'

requested relief would certainly be less onerous than the potential and real relief this

Court has proposed in the past. See People ex rel. Burris v. Ryan,l47 I11.2d210,288

(1991) (acknowledging that if legislature does not timely approve a map, the court will

declare an at-large election, "leaving the redistricting map for another day."); see also
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Schrage v. State Bd. Of Elections,8S I11.2d 87, 108-109 (1981) (ordering the re-drawing

of two districts less than four months prior to the primary election).

Respondents' reliance on Maryland Citizens for a Representative General

Assembly v. Governor of Maryland, 429 F .2d 606 (4th Cir. 1970), is misplaced.

(Respondents' Objection at 14). In Maryland Citizens, the plaintiffs filed suit in 1970 to

enjoin impending elections under a redistricting plan passed by the Maryland legislature

in 1965 based on 1960 Census figures. 429 F.2d at 607 -609. This plan had been

previously challenged and found constitutional. Id. at 608. The Court rejected the

plaintiffs' claims because the relief requested would require the legislature to redistrict

based on decade-old census f,rgures and then turn around and redistrict again following

the release of the I 970 census figures. Id. at 610. Unlike the plaintiffs ín Maryland

Citizens, the Movants' request relief would require changes to the Redistricting Plan

using the new census figures disclosed less than one year ago.

coN USION

Cognizant of the impending March 20,2012 primary election, the Movants

requested dual forms of relief applicable to the 2012 election or any future elections.

(Prop. Complt., Counts I-Vil; Brief, page 12). In their Brief in support of the Motion for

leave, the Movants urged the Court to enjoin the March 20 primary, but noted that if the

Court finds this unduly burdensome, it could still fashion remedy for the }l4arch2014

primary. (Brief, page l2). This Court's March 14,2012 Order effectively foreclosed the

option of enjoining the March 20,2012 primary. The Movants did not request and do not

seek to undo the results of the March 20,2012 primary and do not believe it would be

feasible at this juncture to enjoin the general elections under this map scheduled for
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November 6,2012. Therefore, the only relief that the Movants seek is to enjoin the

Respondents from using the Redistricting Plan as the basis for the primary election

scheduled for March 18,2014, or any subsequent election.

Based on the principles of equity espoused in Reynolds and Martin, this Court

should grant the Movants' Motion for Leave, hear this case on the merits and fashion any

relief in time for orderly elections in March of 2014.

For the foregoing reasons, Movants respectfully request that this Court grant them

leave to file their complaint for declaratory judgment and injunctive relief,

Dated: 3 7g IL

Andrew Sperry,
LaRose & Bosco, Ltd.
200 N. LaSalle St., Suite 2810
Chicago, IL 60601
(3r2) 642-44t4

Thomas More Leinenweber
Peter G. Baroni
Leinenweber Baroni & Daffada LLC
203 N. LaSalle St., Suite 1620
Chicago, IL 60601
(866) 786-3705

One of the

Phillip A. Luetkehans
Schirott & Luetkehans, P.C.
105 E. Irving Park Rd.
Itasca, IL 60143
(630) 760-4601

t2



CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

I certify that this brief conforms to the requirements of Rules 341(a) and (b). The

length of this brief, excluding the pages containing the Rule 341(hxl) cover, the

341(hxl) statement of points and authorities, the Rule 341(c) certificate of compliance,

the certificate of service, and those matters to be appended to the brief under Rule 342(a)

is 10 pages

By One of the

Phillip A. Luetkehans
Attorney for the Movants
Schirott & Luetkehans, P.C.
105 E. Irving Park Rd.
Itasca, lL 60143
(630) 760-4601

Thomas More Leinenweber
Attomey for the Movants
Peter G. Baroni
Leinenweber Baroni & Daffada LLC
203 N. LaSalle St., Suite 1620
Chicago, IL 60601
(866) 786-370s

Andrew Speny
Attorney for the Movants
LaRose & Bosco, Ltd.
200 N. LaSalle St., Suite 2810
Chicago, IL 60601
(312)642-4414

13



CERTIF'ICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned, an attorney certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice of filing

and brief was served upon all parties on the attached service list on March 28,2012,by

either depositing the same in the U.S. Mail at the U.S. Post Office, 4ll E. Monroe Street,

Springfield,IL 62707, with proper postage prepaid.

Submitted,

of the Movants

Andrew Sperry
LaRose & Bosco, Ltd.
200 N. LaSalle St., Suite 2810
Chicago, IL 60601

Thomas More Leinenweber
Peter G. Baroni
Leinenweber, Baroni & Daffada,LLC
203 N. LaSalle St., Suite 1620
Chicago, IL 60601

Phillip A. Luetkehans
Schirott, Luetkehans & Garner, P.C.
105 East Irving Park Road
Itasca, IL 60143

t4



SERVICE LIST

The Honorable Mary Jane Theis
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1705
Chicago, IL 60601

The Honorable Charles E. Freeman
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
160 North LaSalle Street, Suite N-2014
Chicago, IL 60601

The Honorable Anne M. Burke
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
160 North LaSalle Street, Suite 5-2005
Chicago, IL 60601

The Honorable Robert R. Thomas
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
1776 S. Naperville Road,
Building A, Suite 207
'Wheaton, IL 60189

The Honorable Rita B. Garman
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
3607 North Vermillion, Suite 1

Danville, IL 61832-1 47 8

The Honorable Thomas L. Kilbride
Chief Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
1819 4th Avenue
Rock Island,lL 6120I

The Honorable Lloyd A. Karmeier
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
100 South Mill Street
Nashville, IL 62263

Michael Scodro
Jan E. Natz
Brent D. Stratton
Office of the Illinois Attorney General
100 West Randolph, 12th Floor
Chicago, IL 60601

Richard J. Prendergast
Michael T. Layden
Special Asst. Attorneys General
Richard J. Prendergast, Ltd.
111 V/. Washington St., Suite 1100

Chicago, IL 60602

William J. Harte, Ltd.
Special Asst. Attorney General
135 S. LaSalle St., Suite, Suite 2200
Chicago, IL 60603

David W. Ellis
Special Asst. Attorney General
160 North LaSalle, Suite N-600
Chicago, IL 60601

Eric Madiar
Special Asst. Attorney General
605 State House
Springfield,lL 62706

Michael J. Kasper
Special Asst. Attorney General
222N. LaSalle St., Suite 300
Chicago, IL 60601

l5



Case: 1:11-cv-04884 Document #: 1 Filed: O7t2Ot11 Page 1 of 32 PagelD #:1

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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State Board of Elections,

Defbndants,
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case: 1:11-cv-04884 Document#: 1 Filed: 07t2ot11 Page 2of 32 PagelD #:2

l. This is a civil ríghts suit brought to protect the most sacred right in a democratic

society - the right to vote. It seeks to invalidate the redistricting plan for election of members to

the lllinois General Assembly (the "ceneral Assernbly"), approved by the General Assembly on

May 27,201 I and signed into law by the Governor on June 3, 201 I , which sets forth the districts

to be used to elect members of the Ceneral Assembly (the "Redistricting Plan")' The

Redistricting plan and the process by which it rvas created viorate the First and Fou¡teenth

Amendments to the united states constitr.¡tion, the federal Voting Rights Act and the

constitr¡tion of tlre state of Illinois. The gross deprivation of these constitutional and statutory

rights caused by the Redistricting plan requires this cour¡t to invalidate the Redistricting Plan,

enjoin futr¡re elections under the Redistricting Plan and ìnstitute a new redistricting plan setting

lorth the distriots used to elect rnembers of the General Assembly consistent'with all applicable

constitutional and statutory requirements or order other appropriate correctiVe aotion'

PAßrI4Þ,

2. plaintiff CHRISTINE RADOGNO is a state senator frorn the 4lst Legislative

District, a citizen ol'the United States and of tlre State of lllinois, and a duly registered voter

residing in cook county, Illìnois. Ms, Radogno is atso the Minority Leader of the lllinois

Senate, vested by Article IV, Section 6(c) of the Illinois Constitrrtion ol'1970 rvith the duty to

promote and express the views, ideas and principles oIthe senate Minority Reprrblican caucus in

the g7tl General Assembly and of Repubticans in every Representative and Legislative District

throughout the state oI lllinois.

3. plaintiff THoMAS CROSS is a state representative from the 8411'Representative

District. a citizen of the united states and oI the state ol'lllinois and a duly registered voter

resïding in Kendall county, lllinois. Mr. cross is also the Minority Leader of the lllinois l-louse

2



case: 1:11-cv-04884 Document #: 1 Filed: o7l2ol11 Page 3 ol 32 PagelD #:3

oIRepresentatives, vested by Article tv, section 6(c) of the lllinois constitution ofl 1970 with

the duty to promote and express the viervs, ideas and principles ol' the l-louse Minority

Republican carcus in the 9711, General Assernbly and of Republicans in every Legislative and

Representative District tlrroughottt the state of Illinois'

4,plaintiffCFIOLEMooREisacitizenofAfrican-Americanheritageresidingin

the state of lllinois in st. clair county within the boundaries of Representative District ll4 of

the Redistricting Plan.

5. plaintiff VERONICA VERA is a citizen of Latina heritage residing in the State of

illinois ìn cook county within the boundaries of Representative District 22 of the Redistricting

Plan

6, plaintifl ADAM BROWN is a state representative from the l0lst Representative

District and a dury registered voter ând citizen residing in the state of Illinois in Macon county

rvithin the boundaries oflRepresentative District 96 of the Redistricting Plan'

7, Plaintif'f JoE TREVINo is a citizen ol'Latino heritage residing in the State ol'

,rinois in coori county lvithin the boundaries of Representative District 77 of the Redistricting

Plan.

g. plaintilf ANGEL GARCIA is a citizen of Latino heritage residing in the state of

lllinois in Cook Counfy within the boundaries of Representative District l'

g. Deflendant ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF ELECTIONS is the entity responsible

lor overseeing and regulating public elections in lllinois as provided by Article lll' section 5 of

the ilrinois constitution and r0 |LCS 5/rA-r, et seq. The ilrinois state Board ol Elections

r¡ndertakes those acts and conducts its business under color of state law'
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case: 1:11-cv-04884 Document#: 1 Filed: 07t2ol11 Page 4oÍ32 PagelD #:4

l0'DefendantRUPERTBoRGSMILLERistheExecutiveDirectoroftheIllinois

state Board o[ Erections and is sued only in his capacity as Executive Director of the lllinois

State Board of Elections'

ll.DelendantJUDITHC'RICEisamemberofthelllinoisStateBoardofElections

and is sued only in her capacity as a member of the lllinois state Board ol'Elections'

|2,DefendantBRYANA.SCI-INEIDERisamembero[thelllinoisStateBoardof

Elections and is sued only in his capacity as a member of'the Illinois state Board of Elections'

13.Def,endantHARoLDD.BYERSisamemberofthelllinoisStateBoardof

Erections and is sued onry in his capacity as a member of the lllinois state Board of Elections.

14, Defendant ERNEST C. GOWEN is a member of the lllinois state Board of

Erections and is sued only in his capacity as a member of the Iilinois state Board of Elections'

l5.DefendantMLLIAMF.McGUFFACEisamemberofthelllinoisStateBoardof

Erections and is only sued in his capacity as a member oîthe ilrinois state Board of Elections'

16. Deflendant JESSE R. SMART is a member of the lllinois state Board of Elections

and is sued only in his capacity as a member of the lllinois State Board ol'Elections'

17. Defendant BETTY J. COFFRIN is a member of the Illinois state Board of

Elections and is only sued in lter capacity as a msmber of the lllinois state Board of Elections'

lS.DefendantcljARLEsw.scHoLZisamemberofthelllinoisStateBoardo[

Elections and is sued only in his capacity as a member of the lllinois State Board of Elections'

v.tr NuE AlçD JU .RISDTCTION

19. This court has jurisdiction under2S U.S.C' $$ l33l and 1343 because Plaintiffs

seek relief pursuant to 42 U.S.C. $ 1983 based on violations of the First and Fourteenth

4
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Amendments to the united states constitution and 42 U'S'C' $ 1973' the voting Rights Act of

I 965.

z0.ThisCourthassupplementaljurísdictionoverthestatelawclaimspleadedlrerein

pursuant to 28 U'S'C, $ 1367(a)'

2l.VenueisproperinthisDistrictunder2EU.S.C.$1391(b)becauserelevantand

substantial acts occurred and will continue to occur within the Northem District of f llinois'

TITREE-JLJDGE COURT

22,Conveningol.adistrictcourtofthree(3)jrrdgesìsrequiredinthisactionpursuant

to 2g u.S.c. $ 228a(a) because the action challenges the constitr'rtionality of the statewide

apportionment of districts for the erection of members of the rilinois senute and rllinois Hor'¡se of'

Representatives.

FAçTS

Thc Rctlistricting Proccss

23. In 2010, the United States Census Bureau conducted its federal decennial census'

24. The lllinois Constitution provides that "in the year follorving each Federal

decennial census year, the Generar Assembry by raw sharr redistrict the Legislative and thc

Representative Districts." IL CONST', Art' IV' Sec' 3(b)'

25. Throughout the 201 I redistricting process, the General Assembly acted ttnder the

color of state larv.

26. During the entire redistricting process, Democrats held a majority of the seats in

the lllinois Senate and lllinois ljouse o[ Representatïves, and the lllinois Governor was a

5
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27, Democrats eXercised exclusive majority control over the entire process of

enacting the Redistricting Plan at the legislatìve and executive branch levels of'lllinois state

government.

Zg, It is the duty of the State ot'lllinois ("State") to enâct a redistrioting plan so that

the political process is equrally open to meaningfi'rl participation by African-American voters in

lllinois.

29, It is the Stats,s duty to enact a redistricting plan such that the members of'lllinois'

African-American community have the same opportunity as other members of the electorateto

particípate in the political process and to elect representatives of their choice'

30.Itisthestate,sdtttytoenactaredistrictingplansothatthepoliticalprocessis

equally open to meaningftll participation by Latino voters in lllinois.

31, It is the State,s duty to enact a redistricting plan such that Latinos in lllinois ltave

the same opporturnity as do other members o[the electorate to participate in thc political process

and to elect representatives of their choice'

32,ItistheState,sdutytoavoidinlringinguponlllinoisvoters'FirstAmendment

right to engage in protected political expression, including tlre right to meaningful particÎpation

in the political Process.

33. It is the State,s duty to enact and lollow a redistricting plan that does not unfairly

burdenorpenalizevotersbecauseoftheirpoliticalviervs.

Thc "Public llearings'l

34, During the 97tt' General Assembly, the Illinois Senate formed the Senate

Redistricting committee ("SRC") which was co¡nPosed of 17 state senators: 1l lrom the

Democratic majority and six frorn the Republican minority'

6
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35. During the 97rl' General Assembly, the lllinois House of Representatives flormed

the House Redistricting committee ("I-IRC") which was composed of 1l state representatives;

six from the Dernocratic majority and five from the Republican minority'

36, ln March, April and May,20tl, the sRc and HRC held public hearings

throughout lllinois (the "Public I{earings")'

37, The committees held t¡e public hearings purportedly to seek prrblic input into the

redi stri ctin g process'

3g. A consistent and repeated request lrom the public at the Public l-learings was that

the Ceneral Assembly make available to the public the proposed redistricting plan to be voted on

by the General Assembly in sufficient time before the vote on the map to allow the public to

review, analyze and comment upon the proposed redistricting plan.

39. At the aforementioned Public Hearings before the SRC and HRC, virtually every

member of the public who testifìed requested that the committee provide an explanation f'or the

rationale behind each district of any proposed plan brought before the committee for a vote so

that the public lvould have time for review, analysis and oomment prior to a commitlee vote'

40. On infor¡nation and beliel', from May 1, 20ll to May 27,2011, the Senate

Democratic caucus prevented members ol'the public lrorn ttsing the public access computer and

software located in Chicago offbred to members of'the public as a means to analyze and develop

redistricting plans to be submitted for consideration'

Unveiling of thc Proposed Redistricting Plans

41. On May i8,20ll during the evening hours, the SRC first disclosed, as Senate

Amendment #l to senate Bill 1175, a picture of a proposed redistricting plan to the public-at-

large for review and comment.

7
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42, In orderto view apicture of Senate A¡nendment#l to Senate Bill ll75' members

oF tlre public had a brief period of time to access the lnternet and download computer

applications such as Google Earth! and Adobe Acrobat'

43, on information and belief, the sRc never made paper or electronic copies of

senate Amendment # I to Senate Bill I 175 available to the public flor comment or analysis'

44. on May 18,2011, the sRc announced tbat it would accept public testimony on

senate Amendment #r to senate Biil il Ts at ahearing schedured for noon on saturday' May 2l,

201 I in Chicago, Illinois.

45. on May 19, 20lt during the evening hours, the HRC disclosed a picture of a

proposed redistricting plan for representative districts, lited as tJouse Amendment #l to I-louse

Bill 3760.

46. In order to VieW a picture of House Amendment #l to House Bill 3760' members

of the public had to access the Internet and download computer applications such as coogle

Earth I and Adobe Acrobat.

47, On inl.ormation and beliel', the I-IRC did not malce the supporting demographic

data available to the general prrbtic unless a request was submitled in writing'

4g. on May 20, 2011, the HRC announced that it would accept public testimony on

House Amendment #1 to House Bill 3260 at a hearing soheduled flor 2:00 P.m. on Sunday, May

22,2011 in Chicago.

49, on May 21,2011, the sRC accepted public testimony on senate Amendment #l

to Senate Bill I 175.

50'SenateAmendment#ltoSenafeBilIllT5andl-Iot¡seAmendment#ltoHouse

Bill 3760 both stated: "For purposes of legislative intent, the General Assembly adopts and

I
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incorporates herein, as if l'ully set fbrth, the provisions of Llouse Resolution 385 of the Nìnety-

seventh ceneral Assembly and senate Resolrrtion 24g of' the Ninety-seventh General

Assembly."

51, Neither House Resolution 385 nor senate Resolrrtion 249 was filed or made

available to the public or the Republican members of the sRC or HRC for revierv prior to the

hearings schedrrled for the weekend of May 21-27'2011'

llPubliclrcarings,'DuringthcWeelçendofMay2l-22,2011

52.AtthesRchearingonMay2l,2}ll,amajorityofthemembersol'theptrblic

who testified requested ¡nore time to revierv, analyze and comment on Senate Amendment #l to

Senate Bill I 175.

53.AttheHRChearingonMay22,2Oll,amajorityoftlremembersol'theprrblic

requested more time to revielv, analyze and comment on l-louse Amendment #l to House Bill

3760

54. At the t-lRC hearing on May 2Z,2Ol I, members of the public testified that they

were unaware that the demographic data supporting House Amendment #1 to Hor¡se Bill 3760

could be made available if one made a request in writing'

55. On informatïon and belief, the Democratic ¡nembers of the Rules Cornlnitlee of

the tllinois lJouse of Representatives ("Rules commitlee") convened at approximately noon on

lvlay 22,2011 and approved House Amendment #l to tJouse Bill 3760 flor consideration before

the I-IRC at the May 72,2011 hearing which was scheduled to begin at 2:00 p'm'

56. The Democratic members of the Rules Committee did not provide the Republican

members of the Rules Committee with notice of the May 22.2011 Rr¡les Committee hearing'

9
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57, The Democratic members of the HRC and their sttpport stalf did not notiff the

Republican members ol'the IJRC and theír support staff or the general public that House

Amendment #l to l-louse Bill 3760 would be considered at the May 22' 201I hearing or that the

sponsor of the measrtre would be available for questioning'

5S.OnSunday,May22,20ll,thelllinoissenatepassedsenateBillllTTbyavote

of 30- I 4.

59. Senate Bill ll77 did not contain substantive changes to the tllinois Compiled

Statutes.

60.onMonday'May23,20:-l,theDemocraticmajorityofthelllinois}louseol'

Re p resen tativ es voted to 

;;ï: i" J::ï: *ï: :. ^î:::i.i 
:'

6l . on Tuesday, May 24, 2011' the HRC and SRC convened a contemporaneous

hearing to consider senate Amendment #l to Senate Bill ll75 and l-louse Amendment #l to

l-louse Bill 3760.

62, At the contemporaneous hearing on May 24,2011, the De¡nocratio majority

called Dr. Allan Lichtrnan as a witness on senate Alnendment #l to senate Bill I175 and House

Amendment #l to l-louse B¡ll 3760.

63. At the contemporaneous hearing on May 24,2011, Dr' Lichtman testif¡ed that the

Democratic Caucuses in the lllinoìs House of Representatives and lllinois Senate had retained

him to advise Demooratic attorneys and staffers about providing African-Americans and Latino

residents in Illinois with opporhrnities to elect candidates of their choice in any redistricting plan'

l0
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64. At the contemporaneous hearing on May 24,2011, Dr. Lichtman provided

testimony regarding his opinion on senate Amendment #l to Senate Bill ll75 and l-louse

Amendrnent #l to House Bi¡l 3760.

65. Neither the Republican members of the HRC and SRC and their support staff nor

the general public were provided with advance notice of Dr. Lichtman's testimony or a copy o[

his opinions in order to prepare for qrrestioning'

66. The Democratíc Caucuses did not present an expert witness to opine on whether

or not Senate Amendment #r to senate B¡il r r75 or r-touse Amendment #l to House Bill 3760

met the requirement of'the lllinois Constitution ol'1970 that districts be "compact'"

The Fair MaP

67. On May 25,Z0ll, the Republican Caucuses of the lllìnois Senate and the lllinois

House of Representatives unveiled a redistricting plan for the Representative and Legislative

Districts called the Fair MaP.

6g. The Rep¡blican Caucuses made the Faïr Map available to the public on a public

website in an interactive format that provided demographio data fbr each of the districts

proposed.

69, The Reprrblican Cat¡cuses also made the Fair Map and dernographic data

available on their rvebsites in a downloadable lormat'

70. The Reprrblican Caucuses.proposal was filed on May 26,2011 as House

Amendment#1 to Senate Bill I177'

ll
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Unvciling of House Amendment #2 to SB 1177

71. on May 26,2011, during the evening hours, statc Representative Barbara Flynn

currie filed l-louse Amendment #2 to senate Bìll I 177 rvhich purported to be a new redistricting

plan lor the Legislative and Representative Districts'

72. On May 26,201 l, during the evening hours, the I-IRC disclosed a picture of a

proposed redistricting plan lor Legislative and Representative Districts, House Amendment #2 to

Senate Bill I177.

71,. In order to view a picture of hlouse Amendment #2 to Senate Bill 1177, rnembers

of the public had to access the lnternet and download computer applications such as Google

Earthl and Adobe Acrobat.

74, On informarion and beliefi rhe l-lRC did not make the supporting demographic

data available to the general public unless a request was sub¡nitted in writing.

75. Flouse Amendment #2 to Senate Bill I 177 stated: "For purposes ol' legislative

intent, the Ceneral Assembly adopts and incorporates herein, as il'f'trlly set forth, the provisions

of Hor¡se Resolution 385 of the Ninety-Seventh General Assernbly and Senate Resolution 249 of

the Ninety-Seventh Ceneral Assembly."

76. On May 26,7011, approximately hvo hours belore the schedttled session ol'the

Illinois House of Representatives, tlte Democratic majorily of the Rules committee voted by a

margin of 3-l to send llouse Amendment #2 to Senate B¡ll ll77 to the lull lllinois l{ouse of

Representatives for consideration.

77. I-lor¡se Amendment#Z to Senate Bill ll77 never received a hearing before the

t-tRC,

l2
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78, on May 27,?011, approximately fwo hours before the scheduled session of the

lllinois l-louse of Representatives, state Representative Barbara Flynn currie filed Llouse

Resolution 385.

79. on May 27,2011, approxitnately trvo hours before the scheduled session of the

Illinois House of'Representatives, the Democratic rnajority oIthe Rrrles committee of the House

of Representatives voted 3-l to send l-louse Resoliltion 385 directly to the full Illinois l-lousc of

Representatives I'or cons ideration.

80. I-louse Resolurtion 385 never received a hearing before the I-IRC'

Dn¡ctmcnt of the Rcdistricting Plan

81. on May 27,2011, state Representative Roger Eddy filed a motion to discharge

the Fair Map from the Rules cornmittee for consideration,

gz. State Representative Currie objected to the motion to discharge the Fair Map from

the Rules Committee for consideration.

g3. The Fair Map never received consideration before the HRC, the lllinois House of

Representatives, the SRC or the Illinois Senate'

84. On May 27,2011, during the mid-morning hours, l-louse Amendment #2 to

Senate Bill ll 77 wascalled lbr a vote before the full lllinois l-louse ol'Representatives'

g5. During the 'lilinois House floor debatE on House Amendment #2 to Senate Bill

1 177, State Representative cr¡rrie stated that Dr. Lichtman did not review the districts contained

in the new amendment,

86. On May 27,2011, during the mid-morning hours, the Democratic majority in a

vote along party lines in the lllinois l-louse of Representatives passed l-louse Amendment#2to

Senate Bill I 1 77 bY a vote of 64-52.

l3
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ST,Aflerthepassageofl-louseAmendment#2toSenateBillllTT,HouseResolution

3g5 lvas called for a vote belore the Illinois House of Representatives'

gg. The Democratic majority in the lllinois ljouse of Representatives passed l-louse

Resolution 385 bY a vote oP 64-52.

89. On May 27,2lll at approximately 2:00 p.m.' state senator Kwame Raoul filed

Senate Amendment #1 to Senate Resolution 249'

90, on May 27, 20|l at appro.ximately 3:00 p'm,, the Democratic rrrajority in the

sRC voted to concur on l^louse Amendment #2 to Senate Bill 1 177'

91. During the sRC debate on House Amendment #2 to Senate Bill 1177' the

sponsor, State Senator Ktvame Raoul, stated that Dr' Lichtman had not revierved l-louse

Amendment#Zto Senate Bill I177.

92. After the debate on House Amendnrent #2 to senate Bill I177'the Democratic

majority in the sRC voted to adopt senate Amendment #l to senate Resolution 249 over the

objection of the Reptrblican members of'the SRC'

93. on May 27,2011 at approximately 5:30 p.rn., the Democratic majority in the

Illinois senate voted along party lines to concurwith House Amendmenl#2to senate Bill ll77

by a margin of 35-72,

g+, Shortly aller passage of the House Amendment #2 to Senate Bill 1177' the

Democratic rnajority adopted senats Amendment #l to senate Resolution 249by a vote ol'35-

27.

95. on June 3, 2011, covernor Patrick J. Quinn signed House Amendment #2 to

Senate Bill 1177 into law as Public Act 97-0006'

96. public Act 97-0006 became effective on June 3, 201I (the "Redistricting Plan")'

l4
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Characteristics of the Redistricting Plan

97. The Generat Assembly comprises senators elected from 59 Legislative Districts

and representatives elected t'rom I 18 Representativc Districts.

98, According to the 2010 oensus, the total poprrlation in lllinois is l2'830'632'

gg. pursuant to the 2010 census and the United States Constitution, each Legislative

District shall contain 217,468 total people.

I 00. Pursuant to the 2010 ce nsus and the United States Constitution' each

Representative District shall contain 108,734 total people'

l0l. The Redistricting Plan is less compact than the map of Legislative and

Representative Districts for the General Assembly enacted in 2001.

l02. The Fair Map achieves compactness soores signilicantly higher than the

Redistricting Plan.

103. The Redistricting PIan contains rnore splits ol'counties and municipalities in

Illinois than does the Fair MaP.

104. Racial bloc voting is pervasive in lllinois, both among majority and minority

groups.

105. African-American voters comprise a sufficiently large and geographically

compact group to constitute a majorify of the voting-age population ("vAP") in at least l8

Representative Districts.

106. The Redistricting plan sreates only l6 Representative Districts where a majority

of the VAP is African-Americans.

107. Representative District 7's vAP is 45.08 percent Af'rican-American'

l5
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l0s. The African-American vAp in the area around Representative DÎstrict 7 is

sufficiently large and geographically compact such that Representative District 7 could have

African-American VAP in excess of 50 percent'

109, Representative District I l4's vAP is 42'04 percent Al'rican-American'

ll0. The African-American vAP in the area o[ Representative District l14 is

sufficiently large and geographically compact such that Representative District ll4 could have

African-Amerisan VAP in excess of 50 percent'

I ll. Alrican-American voters in the areas of Representative Districts 7 and l14 are

politically cohesive.

l12. Representative Districts comprised of a majority of African-Americans of VAP in

the areas of Representative Districts 7 and 1 l4 can be drawn without violating constitutional

requirements.

l13. Failure to create Representative Districts 7 and 114 with VAP in excess of 50

percent Aflrican-A¡nericans violates the For¡rteenth Amendment to the United States

Constittttion.

l14. Failure to create Representative Districts 7 and l14 with VAP in excess ol'50

percent AI'rican-A¡nericans violates Section 2 of" the federal Voting Rights Act ol' 1965' 42

u.s,c. $ 1e73,

I15. Representative Districts 7 and I l4 deny Plaintifß equal protection as guaranteed

by the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

I 16. Representative Districts 7 and I 14 violate the lederal Voting Rights Act of 1965'

l6
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117. The Redistricting Plan fractures African-American voters causing the dilution of

theirvotes in violation of Seotion 2 of'the federal Voting Rights Acl,42 U,S.C. $ 1973' and the

Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution'

I lg. The fracturing of African-American voters affords those voters less opportunity

than other voters to elect representatives of their choice in violation of Section 2 of the federal

Voting Rïghts Act,47 U.S,C. $ 1973.

1 19. The Latino VAP in Representative District 23 is 46'27 percent.

120. The Latino VAP in the area near and around Representative District 23 is

suffìciently large and geographically compact such that Representative Distriot 23 could have

Latino VAP in excess ol50 Percent.

121. The Latino VAP in Representative Dístrict 60 is 46.64 percent'

lZZ. The Latino VAP in the area ol Representative District 60 is suflÌciently large and

geographically compact such that Representative District 60 could have Latino VAP in excess of

50 percent.

l13,. Latino voters in the areas of Representative Districts 23 and 60 are politically

cohesive.

lZ4. Representative Districts comprised ol'a rnajority of Latinos of VAP in the areas of

Representative Districts 23 and 60 can be drarvn without violating constitt¡tional requirements.

125. Representative Districts 23 and 60 deny plaintilfs equal protection as guaranteed

by the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution'

126, Representative Districts 23 and 60 violate the federal Voting Rights Act.

t7
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lz7. Numerous Representative Districts created by the Redistricting Plan fail to

contain Latino vAP sr¡l'ficient to provide Latinos rvith a lair opportunity to elect representatives

of tlreir choice including, but not lir¡ited to, Representative Districts l' 2' 2l'22' 77 and 83'

128. Latino voters in the areas of Representative Districts 1,2'21'22"77 and 83 are

politioally cohesive.

12g. Representative Districts including, but not limited to, l, 2, 27,2?,77 and 83 could

be drawn to include Latino vAP suffìcient to provide Latino voters a fair opportunity to elect

representatives of their choice without viotating constitutional requirements'

130. The Redistricting plan's failure to provide Latino voters a fair opportunify to elect

representatives of their choice in Representative Districts including' but not limited to' l' 2' 21'

22,77 and 83 violates the Equal Protection clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the united

States Constitution.

l3l. The Redistricting Plan's fhilure to provide Latino voters a fairopportunity to elect

representatives ofltheir choice in Representative Districts including, bttt not limited to,l,2'21'

2?,77 and 83 violates section 2 of the lederal Voting Rights Actol'1965,42 U'S'C' $ 1973'

132, The I'ollowing Representative Districts lail to rneet the constitutional mandate

within the Illinois Constitution of 1970 that all districts be "compact": 1'3'4' 5' 6' 8' 9' l0' l5'

18,20, 21,23,24,25,26,27,28,29,37,32,33,35, 36,39,45,5?,59,64,67',72', 80', ll3', and

I14.

133. No suffìcient or neutral justification exists for lhe bizarre shape of the

Representative Districts listed in paragraph 132'

134, Certain of the districts in the Redistricting Plan inclurding, brrt not limited to'

Representative District 96, are of a shape so bizarre on their face that the shape can only

l8
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rationatly be understood to be an effort to separate voters into different districts on the basis of

race.

135. No sufficient or neutraljustifìcation exists for the bizarre shape of Representative

District 96.

136. The shape of Representative District 96 can only rationally be understood as an

effort to separate voters into districts on the basis of race'

137, The Redistricting Plan pits 25 incumbent Republican members of the General

Assenrbly against one another rvhile pitting only eight incumbent Democrat members of the

General Assembly against one another, without any neutral j'stilication for this partisan

discrepancy.

138. The Redistricting Plan's pitting significanlly more incumbent Republicans against

one another than incumbent Democrats is a deliberate attempt to enhance Democrats' Prospects

for reelection and targets Repubticans to prevent their reelection.

139. The bizarre shapes of' several districts listed in paragraph 132 and the

Redistricting Plan's overall lack of comPactness is in lï¡rtherance of a deliberate attempt to

enhanceDemocrats'prospectsfbrreelectionandtargetRepublicanstopreventtheirreelection'

140. Additionally, many of these bizarrely-shaped districts are clearly intended to

slither across traditional lines in order to place multiple incumbent Republicans into one district'

l4l. The Democratic majorify olthe ceneral Assembly ignored the Fair Map despite

the fact that the Fair Map is more compact'

142, The Fair Map is significantly and consistently more compact than the

Redistricting Plan, as required by the Illinois constitution.

143. Tlie Redistricting plan splits 46 countics, 214 townships and 336 municipalities'

t9
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144. The Redistricting Plan's excessive splitting of counties and rnunicipalities is in

I'urtherance of a deliberate attempt to enhance Democrats' prospects for reelection and targets

Republicans to prevent their reelection.

145. The Redistricting Plan systematically and intentionally dilutes the votes of

Republicans in favor of Democrats in fi.rrtherance of a deliberate attempt to enhance Democrats'

prospects f'or reelection and targets Reprrblicans to prevent their reelection.

146. The Redistricting Plan constitutes an intentional, systernatic and unfhir political

gerrymander in order to protect Democrat members oI the General Assembly and to prevent

reelection of a Republican majoriry of members of the CeneralAssembly.

147. Tlre Redistricting Plan systematically and intentionally unl'airly burdens

Republican voters' rights of political expression and expressive association because o[ their

political views.

148. No compelling reason or neutral justification exists for the Redistricting Plan to

runlairly burden Republican voters because of their political views,

149. The Redistricting Plan constitutes an intentional, systematic and r¡nfair

inflringement of Plaintifß' riglrt to protected political expression and expressive association in

violation oIthe First Amendment to the United States Constitution.

150. The Redistricting Plan rvill create a substantial Democratic majority in both

Houses of the Illinoís Ceneral Assernbly for at least the next decade.

l5l, The Redistricting Plan will lilcely create an unfaír substantial majority for the

Democrats in both houses ol'the General Assembly for at least the next decade, a clear case of

political gerrymandering in violation of'the First Amendment and the Equal Protection CIause of

the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution,

)
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COUNT I
(violation of section 2 of thc Federal voting Rights Act of 1965)

l-l5l . Plaintifls adopt, reaffÌrm and incorporate by rel'erence the allegations in

paragraphs I through l5l above as if onceagain I'ully set florth herein.

152. Section 2 of the federal Voting Rights Act of 1965,42 U'S'C. $ 1973, is

applicable to the State of Illinois.

153. Under the Redistricting Plan, African-A¡nericans have less opportunity than other

members of the electorate to participate in thc political process and to elect candidates of their

choice, thereby diluting their votes.

154. It is possible to create a redistricting plan rvhich will provide African-Americans a

more equal opporftn¡ty to elect candidates of their choice'

155, The Redistricting Plan viotates Section 2 of the federal Voting Rights Act,42

u.s.c, s r973.

COUNT 2

(Violation of Section 2 ol'the Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965)

l-155. Plaintiffs adopt, reaffìrm and incorporate by reference the allegations in

paragraphs I through 155 ol'Count 1 as ifonceagain firllyset lorth herein.

156. Section 2 of the federal voting Rights Act of 1965,42 U.S.C, $ 1973, is

applicable to the State of Illinois.

157, Under the Redistricting Plan, Latinos have less opportunity than other members ol'

the electorate to participate in the politicat process and to elect candidates of their choice, thereby

diluting their votes.

158. lt is possible to create a redistricting plan rvhich will provide Latinos a more equal

opportunity to elect candidates of their choice,
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159, The Redistricting Plan violates Section 2 of the federal Voting Rights Act,42

u.s,c, $ re73.

COUNT 3
(Violation of Riglrts Protcctcd by the First Amcndment

to the United States Constitution)

l- 159. Plaintifß adopt, reaffirm and incorporate by reference tlre allegations in

paragraphs I through 159 of Count 2 as if once again fully set I'orth herein.

160. The Redistricting Plan systematically and intentionally unfairly burdens the rights

to politicalexpression and expressive association of voters who vote Republican because of theír

political views in violation oIthe First Amendment.

16l, No compclling reason exits to unlairly burden voters who vote Republican

because of their political views.

162, The Democratic Caucuses' actions âs described herein violate the Fìrst

Amendment to the United States Constitr¡tion as made applicable to the states through the Due

Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

COUNT 4
(Equal Protection - Redistricting Plan)

l-162, Plaintifls adopt, real=firm and incorporate by rel'erence the allegations in

paragraphs I through 162 of Count 3 as iflonce again fully set forth herein.

163. The Redistricting Plan was conceived and enacted by the majority pany in an

arbitrary and discriminatory manner with tlre purpose and effect of denying the Plaintiffs equal

protection as guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constítution.

22
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COUNT 5
(Equal Protection - Illinois Voting Rights Act of 2011)

l-163. Plaintiffs adopt, reaffirm and ìncorporate by reference the allegations in

paragraphs I through 163 of Count 4 as i[once again fully set fbrth herein.

164. At all times relevant there was in fi¡ll force and effect in the State ofl Illinois a

statute titled the Illinois Voting Rights Act of 201 I which stated in part:

(a) In any redistricting plan pursuant to Afticle lV, Section 3 of
the Illinois Constitution, Legislative Districts and
Representative Districts shall be drawn, subject to
subsection (d) of lhis Section, to create crossover distriots,
coalition districts, or inlluence distrícts, The requírements
imposed by this Article are in addition and subordinate to
any requirements or obligations irnposed by the United
States Constitution, any federal law regarding redistricting
Legislative Districts or Representative Districts, including
but not limited to the federal Voting Rights Act, and the
I I I inois Constitution.

(b) The phrase "crossover district" means a district where a
racial rninority or language minority constitutes less than a

majority of the voting-age population but where this
minority, at least potentially, is large enough to elect the
candidate of its choice with help from voters who are
members of the majority and who cross over to support the
minority's prel'erred candidate. The phrase "coalition
district" means a district where more than one group of
racial minorities or language minorities may florm a
coalition to elect the candidate of the coalition's choice.
The phrase "influence district" means a district rvhere a

racial minority or language minority can influence the
outcome of an election even il' its prel'erred candidate
cannot be elected.

(c) For purposes of this Act, the phrase "râcial minorities or
language minorities", in either the singular or the plural,
means the same class of'voters who are members ola race,
color, or language minority group receíving protection
under the federal Voting Rights Act,42 U,S.C. g 1973; 42
U.S.c. $ le73b(Ð(2);42 U.S.C, g l973aa-la(e).
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165. At all times relevant there was in ftll fbrce and effect the federal Voting Rights

Act rvhich states in part:

No voting qualification or prerequisite to voting or standard,

practice or procedure shall be itnposed or applied by any state or
political subdivision in a manner which results in a denial or
abridgement of the right of any citizen of the United States to vote
on account of race or color. . . . 42 U.S.C. 1973.

For purposes of this section, the term "language minorities" or
"language minority group" means persons who are American
lndian, Asian American, Alaskan Natives or of Spanish heritage.
42 U.S,C. l973aa-la.

166, Pr¡blio Act 97-0006 states that "each of the Districts sontained in the General

Assembly Act of 20ll was drawn to be consistent with the Illinois Votíng Rights Act of 2011,

rvhere applicable,"

167. Public Act 97-0006 also amended the lllinois Voting Rights Act of 20ll to state

that "The General Assembly Redistricting Act of 20ll complies with all requirements of this

Act,"

168, The lllinois Voting Riglrts Act ol'201I mandates that race and color be the

predominant Factor in the consideration of each and every Representative and Legislative District

within the Redistricting Plan.

169. On information and belief, the Illinois Voting Rights Act of 20ll is the only

statute of its kind in the United States of America.

170. The lllinois Voting Rights Act of 201I denies Plaintiffs and other similarly-

situated voters within the State of lllinois equal protection of the laws in violation of the

Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution,
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17l. No compelling interest exists for mandating the use of race as the predorninant

factor in creating the boundaries of Representative Districts and Legislative Districts within the

Redistricting Plan,

172, The mandate within the lllinois Voting Rights Act of 20ll lorthe t¡se oflrace as

the predominant lactor in creating the boundaries ol'Representative Districts and Legislative

Districts within the Redistrictíng Plan was not the least restrictive means of achieving a

compell ing state interest,

173, In firrtherance of the racial mandate of the tllinois Voting Rights Act, the

Redístricting Plan constitutes a racial gerrymander in violation of Plaintiffs' right to equal

protection under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

174, For example, the Redistrioting PIan created Representative District 96 by using

race as the predominant factor above traditional redistricting principles such as compâctness,

maintenance ol the core of previotts representative districts, protection ol'incumbent-constituent

relationships, and preservation of existing county and municipal boundaries,

175. The creation of Representative District 96 as mandated by the Illinois Voting

Rights Act of 20ll violates the Plaintiff's' rights to equal protection under the Fourteenth

Amendment to the Uníted States Constitution on its hce and as applied.

COUNT 6
(Equal Protection - Represcntative District 96)

l-175. Plaintiffs adopt, reaflÌrm and incorporate by reference the allegations in

paragraphs I through 175 of Count 5 as if once again fully set fo¡th herein.

176. The Redistricting Plan created Representative Dístrict 96.

177. Representative Distríct 96 was formed to join areas within the cities of Decatur

and Springfield that have high percentages of African-Americans,
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178. Representative District 96 severs the core of fîve different representative districts

that existed under the previous map.

179, Representative District 96 does not meet the constitutional requirement that all

districts be "compact."

180. Representative District 96 lowers the partìsan advantage of the Republican voters

within the district.

l8l. Representative District 96 also lowers the partisan advantage of Republican voters

in adjoining d isfricts.

182. Representative District 96 severs the boundary lines of Christian, Macon and

Sangamon Cor.¡nties.

183. Representative District 96 does not preserve the existing incumbent-constituent

relationship.

184. Representative District 96 joins urban and rural communities with dissimilar

interests.

185. The Democratic Caucuses used the ethnicity of the African-American

communities in Springfìeld and Decatur as the predominant I'actor over all other constitr¡tional

and traditional redistricting principles in drawing Representative District 96.

186. The Democratic Caucuses have provided no neutral or compelling justification fbr

joining urban and rural communities with dissimilar interests; severing counties and the core of

the previotts districts; not preserving incumbent-constituent relationships; not keeping

Representative District 96 compact; and lowering the partisan advantage of the Republican

minority in Representative Disrrict 96 and adjoining disrricts.
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187. The drawing of Representative District 96 denies the Plaintiffs and othet sirnilarly

situated voters within the State ol'lllinois equal protection of the laws in violation ol'the

Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution,

COUNT 7
(DeclaratorX Judgmcnt - Compactness - Illinois State Larv Claim)

l-187. Plaintiffs adopt, reaffirm and incorporate by reference the allegations in

paragraphs I through 187 of Count 6 as if once again fully set forth herein.

188. The lllinois Constitution of 1970 requires that the districts contained rvithin any

redistricting plan pursuant to Article IV, Section 3 must be "compact."

189. The Redistricting Plan is significantly less compact than the previous map.

190. The Redístricting Plan is significantly less compact than the Fair Map.

¡91, The bllowing Representative Districts FaiI to meet the constitlrtional mandate

wíthin the lllinois Constitution oJ'1970 that all districts be "compact": 1,3,4,5,6,8,9, 10, 15,

1 8, 20, 2 I , 23, 24,25,26,27, 28, 29, 31, 32, 33, 35, 36, 39, 45, 57, 59, 64, 67, 72, 90, I I 3, and

l14,

192, The Democratic majority flailed to provide a neutraljrstification for the irregular

districts within the Redistricting Plan prior to consideration belore the General Assembly.

193, The lack of compactness throughout the Redistricting Plan is so pervasive as to

render the entire Act invalid.

COIJNT 8
(Declaratory Judgment -Process - Illinois Statc Lary Claim)

l-193, Plaintiffs adopt, reaffirm and incorporate by reference the allegations in

paragraphs I through 193 of Count 7 as if once again lully set forth herein.
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194, Pursuant to the lllinois Constih¡tion of 1970, the process by which any

redistricting plan is created under Article IV, Section 3 of the lllinois Constitution must provide

the deciding body with sufficient information to determine if the redistricting plan nreets

constitutional requirements.

195. The Democratic Caucuses did not provide the public rvith a meaning[nl

opportunity to analyze and comment on Senate Amendment #l to Senate Bil¡ ll75 and House

Amendment # I to House Bill 3760.

196. The Democratic Caucuses did not provide the public with sufficient supporting

data and explanations which would enable the public to provide the General Assembly rvith

meaníngf'ul public criticism ol' Senate Amendment #l to Senate Bill ll75 and þlouse

Amendment #l to House Bill 3760,

197, The Democratic Caucuses did not provide the public or the members of the

Republican nrinority with any advance notice of the testimony of Dr. Allan Lichtman.

198. The Democratic Caucuses repeatedly suspended the procedural rules governing

the Illinois Hot¡se of Representatives and the lllinois Senate in an elfort to prevent the pubtic and

the Republican minority l'rom providing meaningfìrl input regarding all proposed redistricting

plans.

199' The Democratic Caucuses gave the public and the Repubtican minority less than

24 hours to analyze and comment on ljouse Amendment#2 to senate Bill I 177,

200' The Democratic Caucuses filed Senate Resolution 249 and House Resolution 385

less than two hours prior to their consideration.
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201. The Democratic Caucuses refused to debate Senate Resolt¡tion 249 and House

Resolution 385, which purported to contain the legislative intent for each and every district, prior

to voting on l-louse Amendment #2 to Senate Bill I 177.

202. The Democratic Caucuses did not provide the public rvith a meaningful

opportunity to analyze and comment on Senate Resolution 249 and House Resolution 385.

203. The Democratic Caucus in the Illinois House of Representatives prevented the

Faír Map llom ever receiving a public hearing or consideration for a vote,

204, The Democratic Caucuses never presented expert testimony on the Redistricting

Plan regardìng its adherence to the mandate ol'the Illinois Constitution ol1970 that alI districts

be t'compact."

205, The Democratic Caucuses' actions as described here in violate Article [V, Section

3 and Article IIl, Section 3 ofthe Illinois Constitution of 1970.

PRAYER F'OR RDLI[,X'

WHEREFORE, Plaintifß pray that this Court will:

A. declare that the Redistricting Plan violates the Due Process and Equal

Protection Clauses of the Fourteenth Arnendment to the United States Constitution, the First

Amendment to the United States Constitution as made applicable to the states through the Due

Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment, and Article III, Section 3 and Article IV, Sectíon

3(b) ofthe IIIìnois Constitution;

B, declare that the Redistricting Plan violates the Voting Rights Act, 42

u.s.c, $ r973;

C. declare that the lllinois Voting Rights Act of 2011 violates the Equal

Protection Clause of the Fou*eenth Amendment of the United States Constitution;
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D. declare that Representative District 96 violates the Eqrral Protection

Clause of the Fourteentlt Amendment ol'the United States Constittltion;

E. declare that the Redistricting Plan violates the compactness requirement o1'

the I I I inois Constitutíon;

F. permanently enjoin Delendants from certiffing petitions or conducting

t'uture elections for the Illinois General Assembly under the Redistricting Plan;

G. draw and establish a map for the lllinois General Assembly Legislative

and Representative Districts that comports with the federal Voting Rights Act as rvell as all other

relevant sonstitr¡tional and statutory requirements, or, alternatively, adopt reasonable alternatives

presented to this Court including but, not limited to, ordering corrective action by the General

Assembly or other responsible agencies of the state of lllinois;

l{. arvard attorneys'flees as provided by42 U.S.C. SS 1983 and 1988; and

l, grant such other and I'urtlrer relieIas this Court deems equitable and just.

/si--------Phillip-A
One of the Attorneys for Plaintiffs Christine
Radogno and Veronica Vera

/s/ -------Andrew S perry:------*------:------
One of the Attorneys for Plaintiffs Thomas Cross,

Adam Brolvn, Chole Moore, Joe Trevino, Angel
Garcia

/s/--*---Tho mgs M. Le i nenweber--------------
One ol'the Attorneys for Plainti[fls Thomas Cross,

Adam Broln, Chole Moore, Joe Trevino, Angel
Garcia

E-filed: July 20, 2011
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Phillip A. Luetkehans, 06198315
pluetkehans@sl g-attv.cont
Brian J. Armstrong, 06236639
barrlstron g@s I e-atty.conr
Stephan ie J. Luetkeha ns, 06297 066

sluetkehans@s I g-attr,.cont

SCHIROTT, LUETKEI-IANS & GARNER, P,C.

105 East lrving Park Road
Itasca, lL 60143
630-773-8s00

Tho¡nas M. Leinenweber, 6208096
thonrasfr?ileso.com
Peter Baroni,6236668
neterlã!ilescr.com
Leinenweber Baroni & Daffada LLC
203 N. LaSalle St., Suite 1620

Chicago, IL 60601
(866) 786-3705

Andrerv Sperry, 62886 I 3

asoerrv{Ollaroseboscol aw. com

LaRose & Bosco, Ltd,
200 N, LaSalle St., Su¡te 2810

Chicago, IL 60601
(3t2) 642-4414
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CDRTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Ihereby certifu that on the 20th day of July,20ll, I electronically fÌled the Complaint

(Civil Cover Sheet, Appearances of Phillip A, Luetkehans, Brian J, Armstrong, Stephanie J.

Luetkehans, Thomas M. Leinenweber, Peter Baroni and Andrew Spery, Summonses to

Defendants) with the Clerk of the U.S. District Court, Northern District of, Illìnois, Eastern

Division using the CM/ECF system,

/s/--------Ph i ll ip
One of the Attorneys for Plainti[Fs
RADOGNO and VERA

Phillip A, Luet'kehans, 061983 l5
n I u etke han s(î)s I e-aftr,,conr
Brian J. Annstrong, 06236639
barmstron g@s I q-attv.conr

Stephanie J. Luetkehans, 06297066

sl uetkehans@s I g-attv.coln
SCHIROT.I, LUETKEHANS & GARNER, P.C.

105 East lrving Park Road
Itasca, IL 60143
630-773-8500

Thomas M. Leinenweber
Peter G. Baroni
Leinenweber Baroni & Daffada LLC
203 N. LaSalle St., Suite 1620

Chicago, lL 60601
(866) 786-3705
thornas@ilesq.co¡n
oeterÉDilesq.cot¡

Andrew Sperry,62886l3
LaRose & Bosco, Ltd.
200 N. LaSalle St,, Suite 2810

Chicago, IL 60601
(312) 642-4414
asnerrv@ I alosebosco I arv.com.
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CLERK OF COURT
SUPREME COUHT OFOHIO

Charles B' Ï/ilson et al'
CaseNo.20l2-0019

ENTRY

Governor JohnKasioh et al'

Maureen O'Connor
Chief Justice

v

This cause oríginated in this court upon the filing of a- complaint invoking this

oorut,s oríginal jurisdlotion pursuaüt,t etäii" 1g, l;¡i""o 13' of the Ohio Constihrtlon'

It is ordered by the court, sua sponte, that the parties shall file supplemental brieß

addressing the following queltïons:

1. Does the supreme court of ohio have jurisdiction over this case when onJy four

of the five rnembers of the 
"ppo*ior-.oiuouta 

have been named as respondents

and the board bas not been named as a parly?

2.DoestheohioConstitrrtiohmarrdatepoliticalrreutalityinthereapportionment
of house and senate disfrists?

3. what is relatofs' burdon in showing that a reapportionrnent PlEn is

unconstitutional?

4.Dosstensionexistamongsections3,Tandl0ofArticle)floftheohio
constitutionl-á if 'o' 

hoi a¡e tht" 
'"ltioos 

to be harmonized?

Tlrepartiesarefi¡¡therpormittedloaddressanyotlrerissrrestheydeemneccssaryto
this t"*ti'review in the supplemental briefs'

The parties shall simuhaneously file the supplemeltal briefs no later than March 23'

zqlz,and shall simultaneously file rurpo*iu" uriïrs no later tha¡r March 30'20t2'

Itisfurtherorderedbytheoourtt|ratoralargrrmenlin.thiscaseissetforTuesday'
Ãprr1.24,20r2 øt9,-0öä.*.'Eaoh side ,iJ,rî' 

"ri""*¿ 
30 nrinutes of orar argurnent rime.
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No. 113840

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF ILLINOIS

THOMAS CROSS, in his official
capacíty as Minority Leader of the Illinois House

and individually as a registered voter, CHRISTINE
RADOGNO, in her official capacity as Minority Leader

of the Illinois Senate, JAMES ORLANDO, individually
as a registered voter, and CHRISTINE DOLGOPOL,
individually as a registered voter,

Movants

ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF ELECTIONS,
RUPERT BORGSMILLER, Executive
Director of the Illinois State Board of Elections,
HAROLD BYERS, BRYAN A. SCHNEIDER,
BETTY J. COFFRIN, ERNEST GOV/EN, WILLIAM F

MCGUFFAGE, JESSE R. SMART, JUDITH C. RICE,
and CHARLES W. SCHOLZ, all named in their official
capacities as members of the Illinois State Board
of Elections and LISA MADIGAN, in her official
capacity as Attorney General of the State of Illinois

VS

Original Action Under
Article IV, Section 3(b) of
the Illinois Constitution of
r970

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

FILED
MAR 2 E 20t2

SUPREME COURT
CLERK

Respondents

NOTICE OF FILING

TO: See Attached Service List

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on March 28,2012,we caused to be filed with the

Clerk of the Illinois Supreme Court, a Brief on the Issue of 'Whether Movants' Motion for

Leave to File Complaint Under Supreme Court Rule 382 Is Timely, a copy of which is

hereby served upon you.

Submi

the



Andrew Sperr
LaRose & Bosco, Ltd.
200 N. LaSalle St., Suite 2810
Chicago, IL 60601

Thomas Leinenweber
Peter Baroni
Leinenweber, Baroni & D affada, LLC
203 N. LaSalle St., Suite 1620

Chicago, IL 60601

Phillip A. Luetkehans
Schirott, Luetkehans & Garner, P.C.

105 East Irving Park Road
Itasca, IL 60143



PROOF OF SERVICE

The undersigned, an attorney certifies that a copy of the foregoing Notice of

Filing and Brief were served upon all parties on the attached service list on March 28,

20!2, by depositing the same in the U.S. Mail at the U.S. Post Office, 4lL E . Monroe

Street, Springfield,IL 62701, with proper postage prepaid.

Respectfully

the

Andrew Sperry
LaRose & Bosco, Ltd.
200 N. LaSalle St., Suite 2810
Chicago, IL 60601

Thomas Leinenweber
Peter Baroni
Leinenweber, Baroni & Daffada,LLC
203 N. LaSalle St., Suite 1620
Chicago, IL 60601

Phillip A. Luetkehans
Schirott, Luetkehans & Garner, P.C.

105 East Irving Park Road
Itasca, IL 60143



SERVICE LIST

The Honorable Mary Jane Theis
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1705

Chicago, IL 60601

The Honorable Charles E. Freeman
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
160 North LaSalle Street, Suite N-2014
Chicago, IL 60601

The Honorable Anne M. Burke
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
160 North LaSalle Street, Suite 3-2005
Chicago, IL 60601

The Honorable Robert R. Thomas
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
1776 S. Naperville Road,
Building A, Suite 207
Wheaton, IL 60189

The Honorable Rita B. Garman
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
3607 North Vermillion, Suite 1

Danville, IL 61832-147 8

The Honorable Thomas L. Kilbride
Chief Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
1819 4th Avenue
Rock Island, lL 61201

The Honorable Lloyd A. Karmeier
Justice, Supreme Court of Illinois
100 South Mill Street
Nashville, IL 62263

Michael Scodro
Jan E. Natz
Brent D. Stratton
Office of the Illinois Attomey General
100 West Randolph, l2th Floor
Chicago, IL 60601

Richard J. Prendergast
Michael T. Layden
Special Asst. Attorneys General
Richard J. Prendergast, Ltd.
111 W. Washington St., Suite 1 100

Chicago, IL 60602

William J. Harte, Ltd.
Special Asst. Attorney General
135 S. LaSalle St., Suite, Suite 2200
Chicago, IL 60603

David W. Ellis
Special Asst. Attorney General
160 North LaSalle, Suite N-600
Chicago, IL 60601

Eric Madiar
Special Asst. Attorney General
605 State House
Springfield,IL 62706

Michael J. Kasper
Special Asst. Attorney General
222N. LaSalle St., Suite 300

Chicago, IL 60601


